Groundwater issue seeps
into at-large council race

Although the South
End and Back Bay are
hardest hit, candidates
see it as a citywide
problem

BY CHRIS ORCHARD
STAFF WRITER

- Whencandidatesforeity conn-
eilatlarge recently gathered tospeuk
ata candidates’ forum sponsored by
political committees in Wards 4, 5
and 9, most of then talked ahout
isuessachasyouth violence, public
schools and the proposcd Boston
University Medical Center hiolab.
Bul one issue, which has been
important to residents of the South
Lind for vears, also crept into the
discussions: groundwater.

Unlike, say, the public school
systern, grovndwater 15 still @ e
that separates the neighbothoads in
Baston. For plal:es like the South
Faael é,mllndw:atf'r is highly impar-
tant, but in f-ofl neighborhoods
like Tlydc Park. it baredy *.hwulimn
the radar. However, ss groundwater
problems spread to new parts of the
ity { Fast Boston and the MNarth End,
for mstincel, the ssue & slowly
cmerging as onge some candidates

feel they should discuss:

“It's such a huge issue” said
Mkt £7Malley, an atlarge candi-
dute who addressed the isue at Lt
month seandidates forum, “its nice
i see how it's become [something]
peaple are talking abont.”

When O Malley canvasses
nefghborhoods andknockson doots,
"Ihe vast majority of people are
urfamitliar with 117 he said. How-
ever, when hie explains to them tial
groundwater depletion potentially
threatens hillions of dollars worth
ol real estate in the city, “people are
intersted.”

“Iei4 an issne thats mamering
mare attention.” he said. To that
exlent, OYMalley says proundwater
is “very much™ o campmgn issoe
for him.

For John Connolly, another
aldarge candidate who talked about
the issue at the lorim, groundwater
is “absolutcly”™ a campaign issue
“Itimpacts several of the neighbor-
hoods,” he said. “Fve tried to make
it poinl fo really learn about the
igsae,”

While OMalleyvand Connally
both agree that groundwater has

become an mmportant city issue,

Continued on page 10




Page 10 #2 South End News #a July 21, 2005

Groundwater

Continued from page |

and while incumbent city councilor at-large
Stephen Murphy said groundwater is one of
his front-burmer issues, all three candidates
have voiced different ideas about how to deal
with the problem.

Murphy insists groundwaler is "not a
campaign issue, it's a critical city issue.” He
said the ity needs to form partnesships with
the state, the MBTA and the Massachusetts
Turnpike Autherity to tackle the problem.

"My hope is to create an independent
authority,” said Murphy, adding that this au-
thority would be similar to the Massachusetts.
Water Resources Authority, which was tasked
with cleaning up Boston Harbor, in that il
would have a stated goal of improving the
groundwater situation.

While mmutanng wells are important,
said Murphy, “we can monitor [them] all we
want; now ['want to Lake it to the next level "

El!it:l Laffer, executive director of the
Boston Groundwater Trust, an organization
that monitors groundwater levels and raises
awareness about the issue, said an agency
like the one proposed by Murphy would be
big enough to fund infrastructure repairs that
would decrease groundwater depletion.

Boston'sgroundwater problemsstem from
the fact that much of the ity is built on wood
pilings in areas that used to be marshland or
under water allugt:lher As long as those old
woad pilings remain submerged In water,
they're structurally sound. But the problem of
. groundwater seepage is a serious one, As the
city has grown, strictures have been built that
draw water outof the ground. Every Ihln%ﬁmll
small basementstolarge tunnelsand highways

@155 Uch %'a hug”e
--x-f._;sald qf—kﬂ' i
can d'm Mﬂﬂ'

O'Malley. “If's nice to
see how it's become
[something] People
are falking about.”

ean get flooded. When the water is pumped
out, it takes o valuable resource oul of the
ground. Al the same time, because much of
the city is covered with impervious.surfaces,
like strects, parking lots and buildings, rain

doesn't recharge the depleted groundwater.

The sewer systern also takes groundwater away
from where it's needed. When this happens,
and wood pilings get esposed o air, they
crumble and decay. Some of the city’s largest
and most expensive buildings are built upon
these fragile foundations,

While “we're a little ageney,” said Laffer,

a bigger agency like the one proposed b}-‘ % [T ,
phy would include funding and engineering &

expertise from the state, META and Tumpike ZE88

Authority — all entities partly responsible for

the gmund!.\nler problem — with the @ul of §

foang pmhlcmnht infrastructure,

OFf cowse, “the devil’s i the details”
said Lafter,

Connolly agreed that monitoring wells,
which lell the Boston Groundwater Trust
where problems exist, are a good step but not
enough. Connolly proposes amending state
building codes and city zoning laws to require
new developments to recharge groundwater,
he said, “so new development projects aren't
exacerbating the problem.”

“The state needs to step to the plate” with
funding, he said, and so does the MBTA.

Caonnolly also proposes low interest loans
to people wha have had property damaged by
groundwater depletion. “We need bo ke steps
to relieve them financially,” he said.

O'Malley said that, if elected, he would
call for an ad hoc commitice to deal with
groundwater, He'd also call for more funding
to the Boston Groundwater Trust, at least
4351,000 a year.

The trust recently received full funding
for the year 2006, giving itan operating budget
of 5296,000, an aceomplishmenl lavded by
Murphy, O'Malley and Connelly,

“Three hundred, fifty-one thousand dal-
lars, 1 theught, was an extremely reasonable
request,” sad O'Malley, who also said he'd
“hold [the MBTA) feet to the fire” on the
issue,

Laffer, who seemed pleased at the 2006
funding levels, said “it’s often a struggle,” to
raise money. With the full funding, the trust
will add 300 monitoring wells to its existing
collection of 529.

ut—la'_"‘" e candldafe

addedmedumnon
and housing are.

Another partial solution to the problem,
said Laffer, would be towork with insurance
companies to offer property owners some
kind of groundwater insurance. It would
be expensive, he said, but currently people
don’t even have the choice.

Lalfersaid the problem of groundwaler
“has become more visible.” Connolly cred-
ited the trust with raising awareness about

Continued on next page



Groundwater

Contined from previous page

the issue. (Laffer said one of his jobs is o
“nag” people about the problem.)

Groundwater problems now existin the
Fenway, the Back Bay, the South End, but
also the North End, the Bullfinch Triangle,
and East Boston, said Laffer. “Is a huge
part of the city.” Additionally, the neighbor-
hoods affected by groundwater problemsare
those frequented by tourists and those that
representa huge portion of the city's assessed
property values.

This is the issue, according to Murphy,
that peaks peoples’ interestin ncighborhoods
built on solid ground, Anything that affects
the assessed value of expensive property
downtown could throw property taxes out
of whack across the whole city.

“We know the problem is expanding,”
said Murphy. But “Estill think it's under cover
of darkness” for most residents in the city.

As Laffer said, “vou don't know vou
have a problem until yvou really have a
problem.”

All that said, eity council atlarge candi-
dale Kevin McCrea, the only at-large candi-
date from the South End, didn’t address the

issues of the groundwater al the forim. [na
recent interview, he said he doesu’t believe
groundwater is one of the city smost important
issues. When campaigning it's not something
he talks aboul unless he's asked, he said.

“It's somcthing | would address as a
councilor,” he said, bul “the groundwater
issue is nol one of the two biggest issues
facing the city.” Those issues, he said, are
education and housing, Groundwatersimply
isn't “equivalent in scope.”

MeCrea said a city planning agency
would address groundwater. “I am talking
about groundwater when ['m lalking about
eliminating the BRA and creating a city
planning agency that wonld address issues
such as gronndwater,” e said.

A developer and contractor, MeCrea
renavated his own home on West Spring-
feld Street in the South End. When he did,
he installed a well in his vard to recharge
groundwater. In his work, he said, “I see
storm drains conneeted to sewer lines all the
time." He said a lot of people, even in the
South End, aren'l aware that groundwaler
is 3 problem. “People need to be informed
about how important it is,” he said.

But in the end, "I don't see groundwa-
ter as one of the two biggest issues facing
the cily,



	sen072105p1
	sen072105p2
	sen072105p3

